EFFECT OF CARBON DIOXIDE AND CYTOKINE FOLIAR SPRAY ON YIELD AND GRAIN QUALITY OF BREAD WHEAT (*Triticum aestivum L*.)

M.Sc. Thesis

By:

Getachew Biru Tsegaye

Submitted to the School of Graduate Studies Jimma University, College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine

In Partial Fulfilment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science in Agronomy

> April, 2016 Jimma, Ethiopia

APPROVAL SHEET JIMMA UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF GRADUATE STUDIES

As thesis research advisor, I hereby certify that I have read and evaluated this thesis prepared under my guidance by Getachew Biru, entitled EFFECT OF CARBON DIOXIDE AND CYTOKINE FOLIAR SPRAY ON YIELD AND GRAIN QUALITY OF BREAD WHEAT (*Triticum aestivum L.*) I recommend that it be submitted as fulfilling thesis requirement.

Adugna Debela (PhD scholar) Major Advisor Signature

Co-Advisor

Signature

As members of the Board of Examiners of the M.Sc. Thesis Open Defence Examination, we certify that we have read and evaluated the thesis prepared by Getachew Biru Tsegaye and examined the candidate .I recommended that the thesis could be accepted as fulfilling the thesis requirement for the Degree of Master of Science in Agronomy.

Chair Person	Signature
Internal Examiner	Signature
External Examiner	Signature

DEDICATION

I dedicate this Thesis manuscript to my late mother Olike Terfa and my late father Biru Tsegaye for their dedicated partnership for the success of my life.

STATEMENT OF THE AUTHOR

First I declare that this thesis is my work and that all sources of the materials used for this thesis have been duly acknowledged. This thesis has been submitted to in partial fulfillment of the requirements for M.Sc. degree at Jimma University, College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine and to be deposited at the University Library to be made available to borrowers under the rules of the library. I solemnly declare that this thesis is not submitted to any other institution anywhere for the award of any academic degree, diploma or certificate.

Brief quotations from this thesis are allowable without special permission provided that accurate acknowledgement of source is made. Request for permission for extended quotation from or reproduction of this manuscript in the whole or any part may be granted by the Dean or Coordinator of the School of Graduate Studies or Head of the Department of Horticulture and Plant Sciences when the proposed use of material is in the interest of scholarship. In all other cases, however, permission must be obtained from the author.

Name Getachew Biru Tsegaye Place: Jimma University, Jimma Date of submission, 29/06/2016 Signature.....

BIOGRAPHOCAL SKITCH

Getachew Biru Tsegaye was born on July 24, 1988 at the vicinity of Gidam Dabsho, Horro Guduru Wollega zone. He attended his education at Hareto Primary and Secondary School from 1994 to 2001 and Hareto Secondary High School from 2002 to 2003, respectively. After completing secondary high school, he joined Alage ATVT College of Agriculture in 2004 academic year and certified with Diploma in Plant science in June 2006. After he completed his study (in June, 2006) he worked as supervisor from 2007 to 2009 in Jimma Genet woreda .Again after three years he joined Jimma University College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine for up grading in academic year of 2009/10 and he graduated from Jimma University (JUCAVM) in June, 2011, in BSc. Degree in Horticulture. And then he worked from 2012 to 2013 in agricultural office as expert in Jimma Genet distinct and final join Jimma University College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine for MSc. degree in Agronomy (2014).

AKNOWELEGEMENTS

Above all, my deepest thank and gratitude belongs to the almighty God who gave me the courage and the strength to accomplish my mission. I am particularly very grateful to my major advisor Mr. Adugna Debela for his meticulous guidance, encouragement, willingness to supervise my research, and valuable comments from early stage of proposing the research to the final thesis manuscript write- up. I have learnt a lot from my association with him for which I am deeply indebted.

I would like to thank also Jimma University College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine for creating a learning environment both in terms of training, Labratory services (nitrogen analysis) and supporting materials during my stay in the campus. My appreciation is extended to Jimma Agricultural Research Centre (JARC) for provision of land. I am also grateful to staff members of the JARC, especially Mr. Tesfu Kebede, and Mr. Gebresilassie Hailu for their assistance in the field, and materials (inputs i e. Seed and fertilizer).

Special thanks to my lovely friends: Mr. Alemu Nega, Yero Biru, Kena Gutu, Tola-wak Wokgari, Dr. Kasahun Gurmessa, Yoseph Assefa, Getu Wokgari, Misgana Lechisa, Desta Dereje, Mulgeta Guchu, Aboma Negasa, Dedham Gebiha, Terefe Hailu, Takele Fikadu, Arebu Nuru, and all my friends who have special place in my heart for their good will and assistance contributed to my study. I would like to express my deepest respect and gratitude to Mrs Kasech Tolassa in willing to supervising and, guiding me closely where not clear for me and treating me to effectively complete my study.

Abbreviation and acronyms

CSA	Central Statistical Agency
СК	Cytokine
FAOSTAT	Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nation
GDP	Growth and Development Programme
IPCC	Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
DAP	Di-amonium phosphate
Ν	Nitrogen
Р	Phosphorus
WUE	Water Use Efficiency

List of table	page
APPROVAL SHEET	ii
DEDICATION	ii
STATEMENT OF THE AUTHOR	iv
BIOGRAPHOCAL SKITCH	v
AKNOWELEGEMENTS	vi
Abbreviation and acronyms	vii
Abstract	viii
1. Introduction	1
2. Literature Review	
2.1 Impact of climatic change on wheat production	5
2.2. Adaptation of climate change for wheat production	6
2.3. Agro-ecology and soil suitability for bread wheat production	7
2.4. Uses and importance of bread wheat in Ethiopia	
2.5. Effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine on wheat production	
2.5.1 Effect of carbon dioxide on wheat production2.5.2 Effect of cytokine on plant growth2.5.3 Importance of cytokine for bread wheat (crops) production	
3. Materials and Methods	
3.1 Description of the area	
3.3.1. Experimental treatments and design	
4. RESULT AND DISCUSSION	
4.1 Effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine hormone foliar spray on Pheno	logical and
Growth experiments of Bread wheat	
 4.1.1 Number of tillers 4.1.2. Days to heading. 4.2 Effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine hormone foliar spray on yield 	
components traits of Bread wheat	
4.2.1 Thousand grain weight	
4.3. Effect of Carbon dioxide and cytokine on grain seed quality of wheat	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

4.3.1 Grain protein content	23
4.3.2 Straw Nitrogen content	23
4.3.3 Total Nitrogen in the Plants.	24
4.3.5. Nitrogen uptake efficiency (NUPE).	26
4.3.6. Straw Nitrogen use efficiency	28
4.3.8 Effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine on wheat grain nitrogen use efficiency.	29
4.4 Correlation analysis	32
6. References	37
7. APPENDIX	44

LIGID OI IIIDLL

Table Pages
1. Mean climate change impacts on SSA crop yields, with and without CO ₂ fertilization
effects GCM models7
2. Mean values for different phenology and vegetative traits in bread wheat tested in greenhouse
3. Mean values for different phenology and vegetative traits in bread wheat tested under field condition
4. Mean values for different grain yield & other yield components in bread wheat tested in
control environment Error! Bookmark not defined.
5. Mean values for different grain yield & other yield components of wheat under field
condition
6. Mean values of grain seed protein & nitrogen contents of others yield components in
wheat treated at different stages in control environment
7. Mean values of grain seed nitrogen (protein) & nitrogen contents of others yield
components in wheat treated at different stages in field
8. The mean values of wheat crop nitrogen use efficiency, nitrogen uptake efficiency and
nitrogen utilization efficiency for different treatments in control environment
0 The second
9. The mean values of the wheat crop hitrogen use Efficiency, N uptake efficiency and N

1. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of growth parameters received
carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different stages in control
environment
2. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of yield component received
differnt treatment at different stages under field condition
3. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of yield component that
received different treatment at different stages in control enviroment
4. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of yield component that
received different treatment at different stages under field condition
5. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain quality and nitrogen
contents of other yield component received different treatments at different stages in
control environment
6.Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain seed and other yield
component of nitrogen use efficiency received different treatment at different stages
in control environment
7. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain seed protein and other
yield component of nitrogen use efficiency of different treatments at different stages
under field condition
8. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain seed protein and other
yield component of nitrogen use efficiency of different treatments at different stages
in control environment

EFFECT OF CARBON DIOXIDE AND CYTOKINE FOLIAR SPRAY ON YIELD AND GRAIN QUALITY OF BREAD WHEAT (*Triticum aestivum L.*) Abstract

Wheat (Triticum aestivum L.) is one of the important cereal grain crops cultivated worldwide. Wheat is grown on more land area than any other crop in the world. World trade for wheat is greater than for any other cereal. Ethiopia is the second largest wheat producer in sub-Saharan Africa, after South Africa and also among the most important crops in Ethiopia, ranking fourth in total cereals production. The demand for wheat is highly increased with the increasing population number and urban expansion. However currently the production of wheat and productivity become difficult due to climate change. Therefore the objective of these studies were to increase the productivity and the production of wheat under variable climate change by applying CO_2 and Cytokine foliar spray at different growth stages on grain yield and grain quality of bread wheat (Digalu), studies were conducted both under field and control environment at Mana distinct and Jimma University College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine in (2014 and 2015) respectively. Carbon dioxide and cytokine were applied at rate of 680mmole and 100mmole respectively at different stage (tillering stage, heading stage and seed filling stage) and Randomized complete block design (RCBD) with three replications were used. The results showed that in both case (in control environment and open field), the number of tiller, days to 50% heading, days to 90% physiological maturity, plant height, spike length, number of seed per plant, biomass, grain yield and Harvest Index (HI) were highly significantly (p<0.01)affected by the effects of Carbon dioxide, whereas, number of tiller, grain nitrogen content, straw nitrogen content, nitrogen uptake efficiency, nitrogen utilization efficiency, nitrogen use efficiency, grain protein content and grain thousand weight were highly significantly (p<0.01) affected by cytokine. Furthermore, the combination of carbon dioxide and cytokine at different stages (Tillering, flowering & seed filling) highly significantly affected, days to heading, days to maturity height of plant, thousand kernels weight, number of effective tillers, biomass yield, number of kernels per spike, harvest index, protein content, nitrogen uptake efficiency, nitrogen utilization efficiency, nitrogen use efficiency and grain yield. The application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages on wheat in green house and under field conditions resulted in highest tiller number (7) and (5.5)respectively, the maximum biomass yield (15.68 ton ha^{-1} & 14.80 ton ha^{-1}) were both in green house and under field condition due to the foliar application of both carbon dioxide & cytokine at flowering stages, protein content (16.75% & 16.76%) and grain yields were $(13.44 \text{ ton } ha^{-1} \& 11.88 \text{ ton } ha^{-1})$ at flowering stages respectively. From this study, the use of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at wheat flowering stage (Digalu) was identified for good crop stand, high grain yield and seed quality. Therefore to ensure further research will be important for fundamental understanding of the effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine foliar spray on yield and grain quality on bread wheat in different location.

Key words: CO₂, Cytokine, efficiency, grain yield, Nitrogen uptake, Nitrogen utilization, Nitrogen use efficiency, seed quality.

1. Introduction

Wheat (*Triticum aestivum L.*) is one of the important cereal grain crops which is cultivated worldwide (*Belderok et al., 2000;* Shewry and Peter, 2009). According to FAO (2015) reports, wheat is grown on larger land area than any other crop in the world and its trade is greater than any other cereal crops. Ethiopia is the second largest wheat producer in sub-Saharan Africa after South Africa and the crop is among the most important crops in Ethiopia, ranking fourth in total cereals production (16 per cent) next to maize, sorghum and teff (CSA, 2009). Wheat, sorghum, and maize supply over 50% of average daily caloric intake in Ethiopia. Cereal production accounts for roughly 60% of rural employment and 80% of total cultivated land in Ethiopia. Households spend an average of 40% of their total food budget on cereals (Adugna, 2007). Although most of the wheat grown in Ethiopia is bread wheat, there is some durum wheat which is often grown mixed with bread wheat. Wheat is used not only for making bread, biscuit and pastry products, but also used for the production of starch and gluten (Hanson *et al.*, 1982, Ziobro *et al.*, 2016).

It is grown as a staple food in the highlands at altitudes ranging from 1500 to 3000 masl, between 6-16 ⁰ N latitude and 35- 42 ⁰ E longitude. The most suitable agro- ecological zones, however, fall between 1900 and 2700 masl (Bekele *et al.*, 2000, Getachew *et al.*, 2014). In all African countries, wheat consumption has been steadily increasing during the past 20 years as a result of growing population, changing food preferences and a strong urbanization trend which has led to a growing 'food gap' in all regions, largely met by imports (FAO, 2015; Abu, 2013). Nearly all wheat in country is produced under rain-fed conditions predominantly by small farmers. A few government's owned large-scale (state) farms and commercial farms also produce wheat. Despite the recent expansion, Ethiopia falls short of being self-sufficient in wheat production, and is currently a net importer of wheat grain (FAOSTAT, 2011).

However, wheat yield in Ethiopia is also lagging behind other major producers in Africa, with an average yield of 2.11 tonnes per ha in 2012, which is about 41 percent below Kenya and 77 percent below South African averages (FAO,2014). The apparent low productivity can be attributed to several factors, including, the production technologies which are predominantly characterized by low agricultural inputs (fertilizer, improved seeds, pesticides) using traditional farming techniques (Arndt *et al.*, 2011). Not only this but also climate variability, particularly rainfall variability and associated droughts have been causes for food insecurity in Ethiopia (Seleshi and Zanke, 2004; Rosell, 2011).

Climate change is expected to pose more challenges and to further reduce the performance of the economy (Arndt *et al.*, 2011). However according to World Bank (2006) report, the correlation between rainfall variability and the overall performance of the country's GDP: years of poor rainfall were associated with low, whereas years with high rainfall were associated with high country's total and agricultural GDP. For this cause, some studies assessed impacts of climate change on Ethiopian economy (Block *et al.*, 2008; Deressa and Hassan, 2009; Mideksa, 2010; Arndt *et al.*, 2011; Robinson *et al.*, 2012) and determinants of farmers choice for adaptation practices (Deressa *et al.*, 2009). A quantitative understanding of current climate variability, its impacts and how farmers respond to this, is an essential step for adapting agricultural systems to future climate change. Moreover, anticipating impacts of future climate change and evaluating potential adaptation options for various climate change scenarios is highly relevant for Ethiopia's agricultural production and improving food security (Bewket *et al.*, 2015).

Therefore to reduce the current and the future impact of climatic variability and improve food security uses of new technology that increasing water use efficiency, water and plant nutrients absorption from the soil such as carbon dioxide fertilization and Cytokine hormones are very important, because of the impact of climate change scenarios was more severe in the tropical latitudes than in the mid- or high-latitudes. For example, averaged over all three global climate model (GCM) scenarios, wheat production changes predicted in Brazil, India, China and Canada were -47, -43, -11 and -20%, respectively, without CO₂ effects, and -28, -13, +8 and +16% with CO₂ fertilization effects (calculated from data of Rosenzweig and Parry, 1993; Rosenzweig and Iglesias, 1994).

On average, they found photosynthetic enhancements of 33 and 25%, respectively, for C_3 and C_4 plants, along with biomass enhancements of 44 and 33%, respectively, for a doubling of the air's CO₂ concentration (Prior *et al.*, 2003).In general, elevated CO₂ increases plant growth (both above-and below ground) and improves plant water relations (reduces transpiration and increases water use efficiency (WUE) (Gifford, 1988). Although elevated CO₂increased overall yields, the proportion of protein in grains is reduced because under these conditions the plant did not increase its nitrogen uptake at the same rate as its growth rate (Pleijel & Uddling, 2012).Cytokine hormone, on the other hand, has been shown to slow down plant aging and prevent protein breakdown, activate protein synthesis and assemble nutrients from nearby tissues(Campbell *et al.*, 2008).Cytokines are a group of compounds that stimulate water uptake, increase cell division, promote organ development and lead to regeneration and proliferation of shoots (Leham *et al.*, 1983).It is therefore imperative to evaluate the effects of CO₂ and cytokines hormone on yield and protein content of wheat as to design optimum scenario for climate mitigation.

This study was, therefore, initiated with the objectives of

- Evaluating effects of CO₂ and Cytokine hormone foliar spray on wheat crop growth, yield and protein contents in control environment and under field condition.
- Identifying the phenological stage of wheat growth at which the applications are effective both in control environment and under field condition.

2. Literature Review

2.1 Impact of climatic change on wheat production

Wheat is a cool season crop and increasing temperature shortens its growth period by accelerating Phenological development, resulting in reduced yield (Asseng *et al.*, 2011). As Liu *et al.* (2008) reported in SSA, average annual temperature in 1990 was 20.3°C in wheat harvest areas, which already exceeded the optimum wheat growing temperature of 15 20°C. The exact level of the effects of climate change differ by location, but some studies suggest that a 1°C increase in temperature above norm reduces wheat yield by 10% (Brown 2009). Without considering the temperature effect on photosynthesis and grain- set, Hatfield *et al.* (2008) reported 7% yield reduction per 1°C increase in air temperature between 18 and 21°C and 4% reduction per 1°C increase above 21°C.

Although by plotting the multiple simulation studies from low- latitude areas, Easterling *et al.* (2007) reported a linear relationship between an increase in temperature and the reduction in wheat yield with about 7% decrease for a 2°C rise in temperature and 34% yield decrease for a 4°C rise in temperature for example as Ethiopia ((Mc Sweeney *et al.*, 2010). Many simulation studies have projected a greater impact on wheat yield compared to other crops in East Africa (Liu *et al.*, 2008; Fischer 2009; Nelson *et al.*, 2009; Ringler *et al.*, 2010).

Fischer (2009), used CM3 under the A2 storyline, projected 63% and 44% yield reduction for rain fed wheat in eastern and southern Africa, respectively, by the 2050s even under carbon fertilization and adapted crop cultivars (A2 storyline mean that Economic development is regionally divided; global population continually grows; consistent fossil fuel use; relatively higher increase in GHG emissions) (Mc Sweeney *et al.*, 2010). Using the CSIRO climate model under the same storyline, the author projected 30%, 48%, and 72% yield reduction for rain fed wheat in eastern Africa by 2020s, 2050s, and 2080s, respectively, even considering carbon fertilization. Using the National Centre for Atmospheric Research (NCAR) and CSIRO models and without considering carbon fertilization, Nelson *et al.* (2009) projected 34% to 36% reduction in wheat under the A2 scenario by 2050 in SSA.

2.2. Adaptation of climate change for wheat production

Carbon dioxide is an important greenhouse gas and burning of carbon-based fuels since the industrial revolution has rapidly increased its concentration in the atmosphere, leading to global warming. It is also a major source of ocean acidification since it dissolves in water to form carbonic acid (National Research Council, 2010).Carbon dioxide is regarded as the driving factor of climate change, however its direct effect on plant is positive (Warrick, 1988). CO₂ enriches atmosphere positively and affects the plants in two ways. First, it increases the photosynthesis process in plants. This effect is termed as carbon dioxide fertilization effect. This effect is more prominent in C_3 plants because higher level of CO_2 increases rate of fixed carbon and also suppresses photorespiration. Second, increased level of CO_2 in atmosphere decreases the transpiration by partially closing of stomata and hence declines the water loss by plants.

Both aspects enhance the water use efficiency of plants causing increased growth (Ghannoum *et al.*, 2000; Sage & Kubien, 2003). In additional to improved plant water relations, elevated CO2 can also affect water movement through the landscape. Water in filtration can be increased and sediment loss through runoff can be decreased in high CO2 environments (Prior *et al.*, 2010).

The crops which exhibit positive responses to enhanced CO_2 are characterized as C_3 crops including wheat, rice, soybean, cotton, oats, barley and alfalfa whereas the plants which show low response to enhanced CO_2 are called C_4 crops including maize, sugarcane, sorghum, millet and other crops (Pervez *et al.*, 2010). C_3 plants typically respond better to atmospheric CO_2 enrichment than do C_4 plants in terms of increasing their rates of photosynthesis and biomass production (Bernacchi *et al.*, 2003; Long *et al.*, 2004). Hence, it has periodically been suggested that in a world of rising atmospheric CO_2 concentration, C_3 plants may out-compete C_4 plants and displace them, thereby decreasing the biodiversity of certain ecosystems. It will inevitably be overwhelmed by all the adverse effects on plant reproduction and growth as the world becomes warmer caused by the carbon dioxide increase, along with the increase in the other greenhouse gases (GHGs) (Stern, 2006). CO_2 fertilization may be slowing down the expected accumulation of carbon dioxide in the atmosphere by increasing carbon accumulation in terrestrial vegetation and soil (Harrison, 2004). According to Reilly and Hohmann (1993) Studies in the early 1990s found that climate change would have limited agricultural impacts globally, but with varying effects across regions. Therefore as they suggested the adaptation and carbon dioxide (CO_2) fertilization effects were the two largest sources of variation in the results. They also suggested that, the mean biophysical yield effect with no incremental CO_2 fertilization is a 17% reduction globally by 2050 relative to a scenario with unchanging climate. They further suggested that endogenous economic responses reduce yield loss to 11%, increase area of major crops by 11%, and reduce consumption by 3%.

Table 1. Mean climate change impacts on SSA crop yields, with and without CO_2 fertilization effects across 5 GCM models (percent change in 2046-2055 relative to 1996-2005) on current (2000) cropland.

Full CO ₂ fertilization effects					No CO ₂ fer	tilization e	ffects
A1b	A2	B1	Mean	A1b	A2	B 1	Mean
8.4	7.8	6.8	7.5	-8.2	-8.5	-5.9	-7.6

Source: Muller et al., 2010.

As the author reported by the 2046-2055 periods, average crop yields are projected to increase by 7.5% with CO_2 fertilization effects, and decline by an average of 7.6% without CO_2 fertilization. However, the study strongly caveats these results, particularly with regard to production benefits from CO_2 .

2.3. Agro-ecology and soil suitability for bread wheat production

Wheat in Ethiopia is produced from 1600-3200 masl. However, Wheat is best grown from 1800-2800 masl with an average temperature of 15-25 0 C (Bekele *et al.*, 2000). On average rainfall of 400-1200 mm is required. The distribution of rainfall throughout the crop growth period is very important. Wheat can be produced on different soil types such as black clay soils, red and brown soils. Sandy soils and soils with problems of water logging are unsuitable for wheat production. Suitable soil pH for wheat ranges from 5.5-8.0 (Ministry of Agriculture of Ethiopia, 2002).

2.4. Uses and importance of bread wheat in Ethiopia

Agriculture is the main source of livelihood for about 85% of Ethiopia's population, contributes 50% of the GDP and generates more than 80% of the foreign exchange earnings (Deressa and Hassan, 2009).Wheat is among the most important crops in Ethiopia, ranking fourth in total cereals production (16 per cent) next to maize, sorghum and teff (CSA, 2009). Wheat, sorghum, and maize supply over 50% of average daily caloric intake. Cereal production accounts for roughly 60% of rural employment and 80% of total cultivated land. Households spend an average of 40% of their total food budget on cereals (Adugna, 2007).

Although most of the wheat grown in Ethiopia is bread wheat, there is some durum wheat which is often grown mixed with bread wheat. Wheat is used not only for making bread, biscuit and pastry products, but also for the production of starch and gluten. The raised bread is possible because the wheat kernel contains gluten, an elastic form of protein that traps minute bubbles of carbon dioxide when fermentation occurs in leavened dough, causing the dough to rise (Hanson *et al.*, 1982). Also wheat and barley are the main staple foods in highland temperate areas, and selling wheat is generally not a primary economic activity for producers (Waddington *et al.*, 2009). Wheat accounts for nearly 20% of daily caloric intake in Ethiopia, second to maize (Rashid, 2010). The Ethiopian Commodity Exchange reports that household consumption accounts for about 60% of wheat produced, 20% is sold and the remainder is used for seed, in-kind payments for labor, and animal feed (*http://www.ecx.com.et/commodities.aspx*)

2.5. Effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine on wheat production

2.5.1 Effect of carbon dioxide on wheat production

Carbon dioxide is regarded as the driving factor of climate change, however its direct effect on plant is positive (Warrick, 1988). CO_2 enriches atmosphere positively and affects the plants in two ways. First, it increases the photosynthesis process in plants. This effect is termed as carbon dioxide fertilization effect. This effect is more prominent in C_3 plants because higher level of CO_2 increases rate of fixed carbon and also suppresses photorespiration. Second, increased level of CO_2 in atmosphere decreases the transpiration by partially closing of stomata and hence

declines the water loss by plants. Both aspects enhance the water use efficiency of plants causing increased growth (Ghannoum *et al.*, 2000; Sage & Kubien, 2003).

Carbon dioxide is not only a major greenhouse gas, but also is essential for plant growth (Kramer, 1981; Dahlman *et al.*, 1985; Warrick, 1988; Kimball, 2011).Carbon dioxide links the atmosphere to the biosphere and is an essential substrate for photosynthesis. Elevated CO_2 stimulates photosynthesis leading to increased carbon (C) uptake and assimilation, thereby increasing plant growth (Kimball, 2011).However, as a result of differences in CO_2 use during photosynthesis, plants with a C_3 photosynthetic pathway often exhibit greater growth response relative to those with a C_4 pathway (Amthor, 1995; Amthor and Loom 1996; Rogers *et al.*, 1997).

Plants with a C_4 photosynthetic pathway show a smaller response to elevated CO_2 than plants with a C_3 pathway. Previous studies (e.g. Wand *et al.* (1999)) indicated that rising in the air's CO_2 content will lead to C_3 plants replacing C_4 plants in the vast majority of earth's ecosystems. For a doubling of the air's CO_2 concentration, Prior *et al.* (2003) found an average photosynthetic enhancements of 33 and 25%, respectively, for C_3 and C_4 plants, along with biomass enhancements of 44 and 33%, respectively as CO_2 usually increases the growth of C_3 plants, in which a doubling of the CO_2 level has also been shown to increase vegetative growth of C_3 plants with an average of 41% (data on 156 species, Poorter, 1993) and 47% (data on 250 species, Poorter *et al.*, 1996). The growth response varied considerably, both between and within species. For example, in wheat the increase in vegetative growth varied between 7 and 97% (Poorter, 1993).

An elevated CO₂ increase plant growth (both above-and below ground) and improves plant water relations (reduces transpiration and increases WUE) (Gifford, 1988). Carbon dioxide increase grain yield and biomass of wheat by increasing the number of grain sunder stood (Pleijel and Uddling, 2012). Rising carbon dioxide enhances vegetable and grain crops grow more quickly and become more drought-resistant and produce potentially higher yields (*http://southwestfarmpress.com/news/climate-weeds-0409/*).

Some modelling results indicated that climate change without carbon dioxide (CO₂) fertilization could reduce the rice and wheat yields by up to 37% in the next 20–80 years(Ainsworth *et al.*,

2008). The net effect on yields for C_3 crops has been measured as an average increase of 14% for 580 mmole for C_4 species such as maize and sorghum, very few experiments have been conducted but the observed effect is much smaller and often statistically insignificant (Leakey, 2009).Some other studies suggested that CO_2 enrichment to 550 mmole under field conditions consistently increases biomass and yields in the range of 5–15% (Lin Erda, *et al.*, 2005).However, the long-term response to CO_2 remains uncertain and will depend on environmental constraints.

2.5.2 Effect of cytokine on plant growth

The Cytokine hormone is one of the factors that determine the cell division, growth and development of wheat. Seed growth as a major economical factor is composed of several growth stages including cell differentiation and division and photosynthates storage (Koch, 2004). Transition from one growth stage in the seeds after anthesis doesn't occur directly but occurs gradually. For example in wheat and barley the mythosis activity of endosperm stops gradually due to cell expansion and photosynthates storage (Olsen *et al.*, 1992).

2.5.3 Importance of cytokine for bread wheat (crops) production.

Cytokines have been shown to slow aging of plant organs by preventing protein breakdown, activating protein synthesis, and assembling nutrients from nearby tissues (Campbell *et al.*, 2008). Cytokines are a group of compounds that stimulate water uptake, increase cell division, promote organ development, and lead to regeneration and proliferation of shoots (Leham *et al.*, 1983). Previous studies e.g. Xie *et al.* (2004), indicated that greatest biological yield was obtained from foliar application of cytokine hormones at pollination and grain filling compared to the check. For example, foliar applications at pollination and both at pollination & grain filling produced grain yield by 5.6 and 6.1 t/ha, respectively, which showed an increase in 50 and 60.2% in grain yield compared to the check, respectively. The probable reason would be that cytokine increase cell divisions causing the number of endospermic cells to increase. These had positive correlations with the increase in grain yield and harvest index (Morris *et al.*, 2005).Despite their established role in plant/crop development, information as to how endogenous cytokines are reduced under stressful conditions is meagre.

3. Materials and Methods

3.1 Description of the area

These experiments were conducted both in Green house (pot experiment) and in a field, at Jimma University College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine (JUCAVM) and Mana distinct Specifically Somodo water shade, respectively. The distinct is located 352 km South West of Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. At 7°40' N, 37⁰26' E and altitude of 2000 masl. The mean annual rainfall is 1639 mm. The average annual maximum and minimum temperature of the area are 26.6^oC and 13.9^oC, respectively (JARC, 2013/14 Unpublished report). The farmers grow bread wheat on brown soil found in the area. Though the area has both Dega and woinadega agro-ecologies this study was carried out on the farmer's field in the woinadega parts of the area.

3.3.1. Experimental treatments and design

In both greenhouse and field, the experiments were arranged in RCBD with ten treatments

 T_0 : No spray (Check),

 T_1 :CO₂ foliar spray at tillering,

 T_2 :CO₂foliar spray at flowering,

T₃:CO₂foliar spray at grain filling,

T₄: Both CO₂ and Cytokine foliar Sprays at tillering

T₅: Both CO₂ and Cytokine foliar spray at flowering,

T₆: Both CO₂ and Cytokine foliar spray at grain filling,

T₇: Cytokine foliar spray at tillering,

T₈: Cytokine foliar spray at flowering

T₉: Cytokine foliar sprays at grain filling each with three replications .The experiment was conducted in controlled environment (pot experiment). The pots filled with soil that mixed with different type of soil, sand soil, clay soil, loam soil, forest soil and compost. The area of the pots is $0.0157m^2$ that has 20cm and fourteen seeds are planted per pot. After the germination of the seeds, seven vigorous seedlings per pot are selected through thinning that was irrigated with the interval of one day.

The field experiment was well tilled and planted in row. The length and width of each experimental plot was 2 m x 2 m $(4m^2)$. Each of the experimental plots had 10 rows, and the spacing between rows was 0.2m. The spacing between plots and replications were 0.4 m and 1.5 m, respectively. Both of the experiments were applied with the conc. of 680 mmole litre⁻¹ (0.68 millilitre per litre of water) of CO₂ (Warrick, 1988; Ainsworth and Long, 2005) and 100 mmole litre⁻¹ (100mg per litre of water) (Shahin Babakhaani *et al.*, 2013) of cytokine through foliarly in each pot and plot at different growth stages until very wet. Carbon dioxide applied three times in a week for two consecutive weeks. The nitrogen (protein) contents of wheat grains, straw nitrogen and available nitrogen in the soil (before sowing wheat crops) were analysed in Animal nutrition laboratory of Jimma University College of Agriculture and Veterinary Medicine. All treatments received NP fertilizer at 1:1 ratio (DAP, 100kg/ha and Urea, 100kg/ha). DAP was applied at sowing time while urea was applied in two splits at sowing and at tillering. The field experimental seeds were planted on July 29, 2014 and that of green house was in January 12, 2015.

3.3.2. Data collection

Composite soil sample were taken from the upper 30cm soil depth at different six randomly spotted plots and were mixed properly to characterize the N content (%) of the trial site before nitrogen application or planting. In addition, to soil nitrogen content data on grain yield, agronomic performance, disease reaction, grain quality, and nitrogen use efficiency were collected from each plot as follow:

- 1. Days to heading (day): this parameter of the plant was determined by counting the number of days from sowing to the time when 50% of the plants had produced spikes
- 2. Days to maturity (day): days to maturity were determined by counting the number of days from emergence to the period when 75% of the plants had reached the physiological maturity based on visual observations
- 3. Number of Tiller/plant (No): tillers were counted on five randomly selected plants from central rows of each plot.
- 4. Plant Height (cm): the height of the plant from ground level to the top of the spike were recorded from five randomly selected plants from the middle four rows of each treatment

- 5. Spike Length (cm): the main spikes from the five sample plants were measured in cm and averaged to represent the mean spike length in cm.
- 6. Number of spikelets per spike (NSKPS): The number of spikelets in main tillers of each of the five randomly taken plants was registered for each treatment.
- 7. Number of Seed per Spike (NSPS): number of seeds per spike from the five randomly selected plants from the central rows of each plot was counted.
- Thousand Seeds Weight (TSW): Grain weight of thousand seeds sample at random from total grain harvest of the experimental plot was weighted on analytical balance expressed in gram.
- 9. Biomass yield (TDW) (ton/ha): the total above ground biomass produce was recorded for each plot.
- 10. Grain yield (GDW) (ton/ha): Grain yield in g/plot at 12.5 % moisture content was taken from the central eight rows.
- 11. Harvest Index (%): the proportion of grain yield to biomass was determined. HI = GDW/TDW
- Grain Protein content (GP) (%): The grain protein content of the grain wheat was taken randomly from ten sample to determine (% protein = % N X5.75) (Bremner and Mulvaney, 1982).
- 13. Total nitrogen content of the straw was the amount of nitrogen in the straw. The straw nitrogen was determined by Kjeldahl method of nitrogen analysis. This method is used as standard and universal method for analysis consists of digestion, distillation, and titration processes (Bremner and Mulvaney, 1982).
- 14. Total plant Nitrogen (TN) was amount of N in the plant (grain N + Vegetative N)
- 15. Total N Supplied (NS) was the amount N applied and available N in the soil sample.
- 16. Biomass nitrogen is the amount of N in the above ground part of the plant.
- 17. Cytokine Use Efficiency for Protein (CUEP): the ability to produce grain protein at the expense of applied Cytokine was determined. CUEP = TGN/TN = (TGN/TDW) (TDW/TN) (TN/NS).TGN = Total grain nitrogen, TN = Total nitrogen, TDW = Total dry weight.

- 18. Nitrogen uptake efficiency (NUPE): the ability of the plant by using carbon dioxide and cytokine to utilize the available N in the soil was determined. NUPE = TN/NS, TN = Total nitrogen, NS = Nitrogen supplied.
- 19. Biomass Production Efficiency (BPE): the ability of the plant to produce biomass at the expense of applies CO₂ and Cytokine was determined. BPE = TDW/NS, TDW = Total dry weight, NS = Nitrogen supplied.
- 20. CO₂ and Cytokine utilization efficiency is defined as a crop's ability to convert the absorbed nutrient into grain yield. Utilization efficiency = TGrN/TN, TGrN = Total grain nitrogen, TN = Total nitrogen used plant.
- 21. CO2 and Cytokine-use efficiency (GW) = uptake efficiency x Utilization efficiency (Weih *et al.*, 2011). GW=TN/NS * GrN/TN, GW = GrN/NS, GrN = Grain nitrogen, NS = Nirtogen supplied

3.4. Data Analysis

The collected data were subjected to analysis of variance (ANOVA) using GLM function of SAS 2008 version9.2 software. For statistically significant means, mean separations were done using Duncan multiple range test was used to identify significantly different treatments. Correlations between the different variables were determined by calculating simple correlation coefficient between each of the variable using Pearson correlation coefficient.

4. RESULT AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine hormone foliar spray on Phenological and Growth of Bread wheat

4.1.1 Number of tillers

Statistical analysis of the data for both experiments in controlled environment and under field condition revealed that effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine on the number of tillers had showed highly significant differences (P < 0.01, Appendix Table 1 &2). The result of the control environment experiment showed that, the treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages produced the highest tiller numbers (6 and 7) respectively (Table 2). The lowest number of tillers (3) was recorded in treatments that received cytokine at both flowering and seed filling stages and check. For field grown wheat crops, the treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering produced the highest tiller numbers(5.5 and 5.6)(Table 3), while the lowest number of tillers (three in both cases) were recorded in treatments that received cytokine at flowering and seed filling stages and check. Therefore the result indicated that the application of carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering, prolong the stage of vegetative period, and promote vegetative growth.

These studies confirmed with previous reports (Baker and Allen, 1993), who indicated that Carbon dioxide enrichment stimulated greater amount of branching or tillers by increasing photosynthesis, reducing photorespiration and transpiration. The increased in tiller number with CO_2 fertilization also increases tiller production and survival (Combe, 1981; Amthor, 2001).

4.1.2. Days to heading.

In both experiments the analysed result showed, carbon dioxide and cytokine application at tillering significantly affected days to heading (P < 0.01%, Appendix Table 1 & 2). Among the treatments applied in the greenhouse, those received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering took long days to flowering (67.5 days and 68.37days) respectively. While the application of the carbon dioxide, cytokine and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering or seed filling had no effect on the number days to flowering, they were similar to check (63 days) (table 2).

Similarly, for field grown wheat plants the experiment that received carbon dioxide and both Carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages took long days to flowering (74 days and 76 days) respectively, when we compared to treatments that received carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering and seed filling stages and check one (70 days) (table 3). This is probably because of both carbon dioxide and cytokine help the plants to stay longer in the vegetative stage by stimulating cell division, cell elongation, preventing protein break down, activating protein synthesis, increasing photosynthesis, and nutrient absorbed, reducing photorespiration and transpiration.

These result agreed with that of Chaudhuri *et al.*, (1990) who reported that increasing levels of carbon dioxide delay advancement to the next growth stage. And also cytokines have been reported that, slow aging of plant organs by preventing protein breakdown, activating protein synthesis, and assembling nutrients from nearby tissues that helped crops in staying in the same stage for long period of time (Campbell *et al.*, 2008).

4.1.3 Days to maturity

The data analysed indicated that both control environment and field experiments revealed significant effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine application (P <0.01) on days to maturity of wheat crop (Appendix Table 1& 2). The maximum days to reach physiological maturity (122 days) (table 2) were recorded from the application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage, While the minimum (114 days) was recorded from the check.Similarly the treatment that conducted under field was also indicated that the maximum days to reach physiological maturity (135 days) (table 3) was recorded from the interaction of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage , While the treatment that cytokine at tillering stage , While the minimum (122 days) was recorded from the interaction of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage , While the minimum (122 days) was recorded from the check one.

Therefore these result showed that the application of both CO2 and cytokine help the crops to increases days of maturity because it delays both stages by slow aging of crop organs, activating protein synthesis and helped crops in staying in the same stage for long period of time. These results agreed with the (Chaudhuri *et al.*, 1990) who reported that increasing levels of carbon dioxide delay advancement to the next growth stage. And also cytokines have been reported that, slow aging of plant organs by preventing protein breakdown, activating protein synthesis, and assembling nutrients from nearby tissues that helped crops in staying in the same stage for long period of time (Campbell *et al.*, 2008).

TRT			Mean		
	NT (N <u>o</u>)	DH (day)	DM (day)	PH (cm)	SPN (N <u>o</u>)
Control	$3.12^{\rm f}$	63.00 ^d	114.67 ^d	90.00 ^c	20.00^{d}
$(CO_2)T$	6.23 ^b	67.50^{b}	118.88 ^{bc}	92.00^{a}	21.63 ^c
$(CO_2)F$	4.08^{e}	63.00^{d}	118.04 ^c	90.67 ^{bc}	23.83 ^b
(CO ₂)SF	4.01^{e}	63.00^{d}	118.00°	90.67 ^{bc}	21.05 ^d
(CK)T	4.42^{d}	65.13 ^c	118.03 ^c	91.00^{b}	20.27^{f}
(CK)F	$3.12^{\rm f}$	63.00 ^d	117.27 ^c	90.67 ^{bc}	21.07^{d}
(CK)SF	3.07^{f}	63.00 ^d	117.23 ^c	90.00°	20.63 ^e
(CO ₂ X CK)T	7.12 ^a	68.37^{a}	122.36 ^a	92.40^{a}	21.43 ^{cd}
(CO ₂ X CK)F	4.77°	63.00^{d}	120.00^{b}	90.87^{b}	24.14 ^a
(CO ₂ X CK)SF	$4.07^{\rm e}$	63.00 ^d	120.00^{b}	90.73 ^b	21.22^{de}
Standard Error	0.73	1.41	0.68	0.47	0.74
CV (%)	3.28	0.38	0.85	0.42	0.69

Table 2: Mean values for different phenology and vegetative traits in bread wheat (Digalu variety) tested under green house.

CV = Coefficient of Variation; Values following by the same letter within the Column or row are not significantly different at 0.05 probability level, TRT=Treatment' NT= number of tiller, DH= Days of Heading, DM= Days of Maturity, PH= Plant height, SPN= Number of spikelet, T= Tillering, F= Flowering, SF= Seed Filling, CK= Cytokine, CO₂= Carbon dioxide.

Table 3: Mean values for different phenology and vegetative traits in bread wheat (Digalu variety) tested at field, 2015.

TRT			Mean		
	NT(N <u>o</u>)	DH (day)	DM (day)	PH(cm)	SPN (N <u>o</u>)
Control	3. 00 ^d	70.00^{d}	122.16 ^d	91.12 ^d	19.65 ^f
$(CO_2)T$	5.50^{a}	74.17 ^b	131.67 ^{ab}	95.57 ^a	20.03 ^{ef}
$(CO_2)F$	4.10^{bc}	70.24 ^d	130.55 ^b	94.46 ^b	22.30^{b}
$(CO_2)SF$	3.80°	70.00^{d}	130.52 ^b	94.55 ^b	20.69 ^{def}
(CK)T	4.17 ^{bc}	73.43 ^c	129.89 ^b	92.80 ^c	19.66 ^f
(CK)F	3.17 ^d	70.25 ^d	128.48 ^c	94.05 ^b	21.28 ^{bd}
(CK)SF	3.05 ^d	70.05 ^d	128.47 ^c	93.73 ^c	20.36 ^{def}
(CO ₂ X CK)T	5.83^{a}	75.66^{a}	134.58 ^a	96.32 ^a	20.87^{de}
(CO ₂ X CK)F	4.48^{b}	70.40^{d}	131.51 ^{ab}	94.73 ^b	23.90 ^a
(CO ₂ X CK)SF	3.90°	70.02 ^d	131.57 ^{ab}	94.58 ^b	21.70 ^b
Standard Error	0.5	1.5	1.8	0.5	0.8
CV (%)	6.11	0.47	0.56	0.47	2.96

CV = Coefficient of Variation; different at 0.05 probability level, TRT=Treatment' NT= number of tiller, DH= Days of Heading, DM= Days of Maturity, PH= Plant height, SPN= Number of spikelet, T= Tillering, F= Flowering, SF= Seed Filling, CK= Cytokine, CO₂= Carbon dioxide

4.2 Effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine hormone foliar spray on yield and yield components traits of Bread wheat

4.2.1 Thousand grain weight

The result of analysis both the experiments in control environment and under field condition revealed effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine application on thousand seed weight had showed highly significant differences (P < 0.01) (Appendix Table 3 & 4).The result of the experiment in control environment showed that, the treatments that received both carbon dioxide and cytokine and also cytokine at flowering seed filling produced the highest thousand grain weight, 50.07g, 51g and 52g, respectively (Table 4). While the lowest grain weight 43g were recorded in check and treatment that received carbon dioxide at tillering stage.

In field conditions, treatments that received both carbon dioxide and cytokine and cytokine at flowering and seed filling produced the highest thousand grain weight of 53.35g, 53.53g and 53.42g, respectively (Table 5). The highest in grain thousand weights might be due to the application of cytokine and carbon dioxide at seed filling stage that help to activate the cell division of seed that finally caused the increment of seed size. While the lowest grain thousand weight 45.80g, 45.86g and 45.88g were recorded in check and treatments that received carbon dioxide at flowering stage and carbon dioxide at tillering stage respectively. These results were in line with Amthor (2001) report who reported that Carbon dioxide enrichment caused an increase in seed number per plant when applied during the flowering period and in seed size when applied during seed filling. Xie *et al.* (2004) also reported that cytokine increases 1000-kernel weight through retarding ageing and increasing the seed's active growth period.

4.2.2 Grain yield (ton ha⁻¹)

Statistical analysis of the data in both experiments in control environment and under field condition revealed significant effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine foliar spray application (p <0.01) (Appendix Table 3 & 4).In greenhouse, the highest grain yield 13.44 ton ha⁻¹ was produced by the application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stage (Table 4). Furthermore, the treatments that received carbon dioxide at flowering and both carbon dioxide and Cytokine at seed filling stage, produced the next higher yields (11.96 ton ha⁻¹ & 11.73 ton ha⁻¹) respectively. On the other hand, the lowest mean yield of 6.6 ton ha⁻¹ and 7.2 ton ha⁻¹ were recorded in check and the treatments that received cytokine at tillering stage, respectively.

Similarly, the result of the field experiment showed that, wheat crops that received carbon dioxide and both the carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stage produced the highest grain yield (11.59 ton ha⁻¹&11.89 ton ha⁻¹). On the other hand, the lowest mean yield of 6.2 ton ha⁻¹ and 6.8 ton ha⁻¹ were recorded in check and the treatments that received cytokine at tillering stage (Table 5). The reason of increased grain yield may be due to enhanced nutrients and water absorption, increment of photosynthesis, high assimilation allocated to grain seed in the needed time(at flowering and seed filling period), photo respiration and transpiration reduced, increase cell division, promote grain seed development by the application of carbon dioxide and cytokine.

The result agreed with the Amthor (2001) report, the grain yield increased when carbon dioxide enrichment was added during flowering and seed filling periods. No effect of carbon dioxide enrichment on grain yield was observed when the additional carbon dioxide was given during the vegetative period. Carbon dioxide enrichment caused an increase in seed number per plant when applied during the flowering period and in seed size when applied during seed filling. Similarly besides increasing the number of grain seeds per plant Morris *et al.* (2005) reported that an increasing cytokine concentration in seeds during cell division caused the number of endospermic cells to increase which had positive correlation with the increase in grain yield.

4.2.3 Biomass yield (ton ha⁻¹)

Analysed data indicated that both the experiments in control environment and under field condition showed high significant effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine applied at different stages (p < 0.01) on biological yield (Appendix Table 3 & 4).The result of the experiment that conducted in controlled environment showed that, the maximum biomass yield 15.50 ton ha⁻¹ and 15.30 ton ha⁻¹ were produced by the treatments that received carbon dioxide and both with carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage (Table 4). On the other hand, the minimum biomass yield was obtained from the treatment that received cytokine at tillering stage (10.83tonha⁻¹).

Similarly, the result of the treatment that conducted under field condition showed that, maximum biomass yield 14.8 ton ha⁻¹ was obtained from the treatment combination of both carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at flowering stage (Table 5). On the other hand, the minimum biomass yields were obtained from a check and a treatment that received cytokine at tillering stage (11.30 ton ha⁻¹ and 11.10 ton ha⁻¹) respectively.

The result showed that biological yield was increased due to high number of tillers, number of grain per spike and plant height in the treatment of high plant population and low yield and plant height than in the treatment of lower plant population (Table 4 & 5).

These results were in agreement with (Li *et al.*, 2000; Amthor, 2001; Obrist and Arnone, 2003) who reported that increasing carbon dioxide concentration in wheat plants should display increasingly greater rates of photosynthesis and biomass production, which should lead to ever greater grain yields in this important cereal crop, even under conditions of low soil moisture or

poor soil fertility. Because elevated CO₂ stimulated rates of photosynthesis in wheat biomass and grain yield.

4.2.4. Harvest index

Harvest index is the partitioning of dry matter by plant among biomass and economic yield. Statistical analysis of the data for both experiments, in control environment and under field condition revealed significant effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine applied at different stage (p <0.01) on harvest index (Appendix Table 3 & 4). Highest harvest index was observed in the treatment that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide & cytokine at flowering stage (87.28%) and (91.86%), respectively. While lowest harvest index was observed from the check (57.31%) (Table 4).

Similarly, the result of the treatment that conducted under field condition showed that the highest harvest index was observed in a plots that received carbon dioxide and combination of carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stages (78.4%) and (80.13%) respectively, while the lowest harvest index was observed from the check (55%) (Table 5).

These result showed that harvest indexes were low when applied carbon dioxide, cytokine and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage that increase number of tillers, all photo assimilates are allocated to vegetative that stimulate vegetative growth. These increasing plant density caused increases competition for resource, finally produced low grain yield and maximum biomass yield. While the maximum harvest indexes obtained from carbon dioxide and both interaction of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at flowering (pollination) and or seed filling period that helps to increase, nutrient absorbed, photosynthesis, photo assimilated allocation to sink organ, stimulate cell division and elongation of seeds, reduce photorespiration and transpiration, moisture competition minimum, that result number of tiller inter mediate, long spike length, large grain seed size, large number of grain seeds per plant, high grain yield per unit areas and finally maximum harvest index.

The obtained results were in agreement with the findings of (Amthor, 2001) the foliar application of cytokine increased the source ability through the size of the source by increasing the rate of cell division in growing seeds. As a result, a greater portion of the photosynthates was allocated to the seeds and the harvest index increased (Morris *et al.*, 2005).

TRT				Mean		
	SPL(cm)	NS(no)	TWS(g)	BMY(tonha ⁻¹)	GY(tonha ⁻¹)	HI (%)
Control	9.00 ⁱ	80.00 ^g	43.05^{f}	11.03 ^e	6.61 ^g	57.31 ^f
$(CO_2)T$	9.65 ^e	86.05^{b}	43.06^{f}	15.50 ^a	8.98 ^e	66.62^{d}
$(CO_2)F$	12.20^{b}	88.10^{a}	$45.40^{\rm e}$	13.37 ^c	11.96 ^b	87.28^{a}
(CO ₂)SF	9.73 ^e	86.00°	45.31 ^e	14.01^{bc}	10.25 ^c	73.28^{bc}
(CK)T	9.00 ^g	82.03 ^f	49.70^{b}	10.83 ^e	7.20 ^g	57.96 ^e
(CK)F	9.57 ^e	84.00^{d}	52.00^{a}	12.10^{d}	9.10 ^e	75.04^{bc}
(CK)SF	9.22^{f}	83.05 ^e	51.03 ^a	12.10^{d}	8.41^{f}	69.60 ^{cd}
$(CO_2 X CK)T$	10.58^{d}	86.08°	47.01 ^d	15.69 ^a	10.00^{d}	65.49^{d}
$(CO_2 X CK)F$	12.58^{a}	88.27^{a}	50.07^{b}	14.65 ^{ab}	13.44 ^a	91.86 ^a
(CO ₂ X CK)SF	10.91 ^c	86.16 ^b	48.37 ^c	14.65 ^{ab}	11.73 ^b	78.80^{b}
Standard Error	0.62	1.30	0.79	469.45	793.77	6.77
CV (%)	2.68	0.46	0.54	4.50	1.02	4.92

Table 4: Mean values for different grain yield & other yield components in bread wheat (Digalu variety) tested in control environment.

CV = Coefficient of Variation, TRT=Treatment, SPL = Spike length, NS = Number of seed per plant, TWS = Thousand seed weight, BMY= Biomass yield, GY = Grain yield, HI = Harvest Index, F= Flowering, SF= Seed Filling, CK= Cytokine, CO₂= Carbon dioxide.

Table 5: Mean values for different grain yield & other yield components of wheat (Digalu variety) under field condition.

TRT				Mean		
	SPL	NS per pt	TSW	BMY	GY	HI
Control	8.35 ^c	78 ^f	45.80 ^e	11.30 ^h	6.24 ⁱ	55.23 ^j
$(CO_2)T$	8.58 ^a	87.25 [°]	45.86^{e}	12.00 ^g	7.83	65.27 ⁿ
$(CO_2)F$	10.22 ^b	88.22^{a}	45.88 ^e	14.68 ^b	11.65 ^b	78.40 ^b
(CO ₂)SF	9.62 ^{bc}	86.28 ^{cd}	46.56 ^e	13.88 ^d	10.08 ^d	73.10 ^d
(CK)T	8.54 ^d	81.20 ^e	48.85 ^c	11.41 ^h	6.80^{h}	61.14 ⁱ
(CK)F	9.62 ^{bc}	87.25 ^b	53.93 ^a	12.32^{f}	8.88 ^e	72.14 ^e
(CK)SF	9.08 ^{cd}	85.92 ^d	53.84 ^a	12.30 ^f	8.35 ^g	68.17 ^f
(CO ₂ X CK)T	8.88 ^{cd}	86.42 ^{cd}	48.01 ^d	12.60 ^e	8.53 ^f	67.48 ^g
(CO ₂ X CK)F	11.05 ^a	88.27 ^a	53.35 ^{ab}	14.81 ^a	11.89 ^a	80.13 ^a
(CO ₂ X CK)SF	9.67 ^{bc}	86.50 ^c	51.57 ^b	14.31 ^c	10.95 ^c	75.57 [°]
Standard Error	0.5	0.7	1.35	642.6	934.6	3.7
CV (%)	4.6	0.36	0.89	2.46	1.3	0.5

CV = Coefficient of Variation; TRT = Treatment, SPL = Spike length, NS = Number of seed per plant, TWS = Thousand seed weight, BMY= Biomass yield, GY = Grain yield, HI = Harvest Index, F= Flowering, SF= Seed Filling, CK= Cytokine, CO₂= Carbon dioxide.

4.3. Effect of Carbon dioxide and cytokine on grain seed quality of wheat.

4.3.1 Grain protein content

Statistical analysis of the data for both experiments in controlled environment and under field condition revealed significant effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at different stages (P <0.01) on the grain wheat protein content (Appendix Table 5& 6).The result of the experiment in control environment showed that, the treatments that received cytokine at flowering and seed filling stages contain the maximum grain proteins (16.75% and 14.87%) respectively (Table 6). The minimum grain protein content was recorded in treatment that received carbon dioxide at tillering stage (9.25%).

The experiment in the field plots showed that treatments received cytokine at flowering and seed filling contain the maximum grain proteins (16.76% and 14.88%) respectively (Table 7). And also the minimum grain protein content was recorded in treatment that applied carbon dioxide at tillering stage (9.26%).

These findings were in agreement with (Campbell *et al.*, 2008) who reportedly cytokines have been shown to slow aging of plant organs by preventing protein breakdown, activating protein synthesis, and assembling nutrients from nearby tissues. And also agreed with (Gornall *et al.*, 2010; Sinclair *et al.*, 2000) who reported an elevated CO_2 is detrimental to wheat flour quality through reductions in protein content.

4.3.2 Straw Nitrogen content

The analysed data for both experiments in controlled environment and under field condition revealed significant effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at different stages (P <0.01) on straw wheat nitrogen content (Appendix Table 5& 6). The result of the treatments that conducted in controlled environment showed that, the maximum straw content of nitrogen (0.31g/pot) in both cases were recorded in treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages (Table 6). On the other hand the minimum straw content of nitrogen was recorded in treatment that received carbon dioxide at flowering stage (0.13g/pot).

Similarly in field condition, the treatments that received both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage contained the maximum straw nitrogen contents (70.56g/plot) (Table 7), while the

minimum straw nitrogen content was recorded in treatment that received carbon dioxide at flowering stage (32.79g/plot).

These results indicated that application of carbon dioxide, cytokine and combination of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage, it initiate crops to bear great tiller and increases nitrogen content of straws of wheat by increasing nitrogen absorbed, photosynthesis and water use efficiency, reduce photorespiration and transpiration that promote vegetative growth, increase, the number of tillers, stem diameter, plant height and leaf area.

4.3.3 Total Nitrogen in the Plants.

The analysed data for both the experiments in control environment and under field condition showed significant effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine applied at different stages (p < 0.01) on total nitrogen in a plant (Appendix Table 5 & 6).The result of the experiment in controlled environment showed that, the maximum total nitrogen in a crops (0.57 g/pot) was recorded in treatments that received both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stage (table 6), While the minimum total nitrogen in plants (0.46g/pot) was recorded in treatment that received carbon dioxide at flowering stage.

Similarly the experiment under field condition, showed that the treatments that received cytokine at flowering stage and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages gave the maximum total nitrogen in crops (159.64 g/plot and 155.64 g/plot) respectively (Table 7). And also the minimum straw nitrogen content was recorded in treatment that received carbon dioxide at flowering stage (105.23g/plot).

The total nitrogen in the plants is total nitrogen that in all plants body parts that found above ground. The result showed that the most total nitrogen in the plant stored were in the straw than grain seed, except the grain seed that treated with the cytokine at flowering and seed filling stages. The application of carbon dioxide, cytokine and both combination of carbon dioxide & cytokine at tillering stages are increases the absorption nitrogen, nutrients, water, photosynthesis, number of tillering, promote vegetative growth than grain yield.

These result agreed with (Baker and Allen, 1993; Campbell, 2011) who reported that Carbon dioxide enrichment stimulated greater amount of branching or tillering by increasing photosynthesis, reducing photorespiration and transpiration. However the application of Carbon dioxide fertilizer during tillering period indicated that early growth and tillering were relatively unimportant. And also agree with (Campbell *et al.*, 2008) who reported that the Cytokines have been shown to slow aging of plant organs by preventing protein breakdown, activating protein synthesis, and assembling nutrients from nearby tissues.

Table 6: Mean values of grain seed Nitrogen (protein) & nitrogen contents of others yield

 components in wheat treated at different stages in control environment.

	MEAN								
TRT	GrP (%)	TNStr (g/g)	TNP (g /g)	NS (g/g [′])	BN(g/g)				
Check	12.00 ^d	0.24 ^e	0.47 ^e	120.3 ^a	0.47 ^e				
(CO ₂)T	9.25 ^j	0.31 ^a	0.51 ^b	120.3 ^a	0.51 ^b				
(CO ₂)F	9.37 ⁱ	0.13 ^h	0.46^{f}	120.3 ^a	0.46^{f}				
(CO ₂)SF	9.75 ^h	0.22 ^e	0.47 ^e	120.3 ^a	0.47 ^e				
(CK)T	13.37 ^c	0.277 ^b	0.49 ^c	120.3 ^a	0.49 ^c				
(CK)F	16.75 ^a	0.26 ^d	0.51 ^b	120.3 ^a	0.51 ^b				
(CK)SF	14.87 ^b	0.275 ^c	0.49 ^c	120.3 ^a	0.49 ^c				
(CO ₂ X CK)T	10.25 ^g	0.31 ^a	0.57 ^a	120.3 ^a	0.57 ^a				
(CO ₂ X CK)F	10.31 ^f	0.18 ^g	0.48 ^d	120.3 ^a	0.48^{d}				
(CO ₂ X CK)SF	10.5 ^e	0.184^{f}	0.49 ^c	120.3 ^a	0.49 ^c				
Standard Error	0.74	24.17	13.12	0.00	13.12				
	0.00	0.005	0.0023	0.0000	0.0025				

CV = Coefficient of Variation, TRT = Treatment, GrP = Grain protein, TNStr = Total nitrogen in straw, TNP = Total nitrogen in plant, NS = Nitrogen supply, BN = Biomass yield nitrogen.

		Mean			
	GrP	TNStr	TNP	NS	BN
TRT	(%)	(g/g)	(g/g)	(g/g)	(g/g)
Check	12.00^{d}	0.49 ^e	120.11 ^g	28840.1 ^a	120.11 ^g
$(CO_2)T$	9.26 ^j	56.01 ^b	143.00 ^c	28840.1^{a}	143.00 ^c
$(CO_2)F$	9.38 ⁱ	32.79 ^j	105.23^{i}	28840.1 ^a	105.23 ^h
(CO ₂)SF	9.76 ^h	48.10 ^f	111.13 ^h	28840.1 ^a	111.13 ^g
(CK)T	13.38 ^c	52.33 ^c	137.34 ^d	28840.1 ^a	137.34 ^d
(CK)F	16.76 ^a	43.10 ^h	159.64 ^a	28840.1 ^a	159.64 ^a
(CK)SF	14.88 ^b	49.53 ^d	142.94 ^c	28840.1 ^a	142.94 ^c
$(CO_2 X CK)T$	10.26 ^g	70.56 ^a	155.64 ^b	28840.1 ^a	155.64 ^b
(CO ₂ X CK)F	10.32 ^f	40.79 ⁱ	121.97 ^f	28840.1 ^a	$121.97^{\rm f}$
(CO ₂ X	10.51 ^e	46.94 ^g	122.68 ^e	28840.1 ^a	122.68 ^e
CK)SF					
Standard Error	0.57	16.87	12.63	0.00	0.02
CV (%)	0.12	1.03	0.21	0.0004	0.21

 Table 7: Mean values of grain seed nitrogen (protein) & nitrogen contents of others yield

 components in wheat treated at different stages in field.

CV = Coefficient of Variation; TRT = Treatment, GrP = Grain protein, TNStr = Total nitrogen in straw, TNP = Total nitrogen in plant, NS = Nitrogen supply, BN = Biomass yield nitrogen.

4.3.5. Nitrogen uptake efficiency (NUPE).

Statistical analysis of the data for both experiments, in control environment and under field condition revealed a highly significant effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at different stages (p < 0.01) on the nitrogen uptake efficiency in wheat crops (Appendix Table 7 & 8). The result of the experiment in controlled environment showed that, the maximum nitrogen uptake efficiency (0.49% and 0.52%) had used by the treatments that treated with cytokine at flowering and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages (Table 8) respectively. On the other hand, the minimum nitrogen grain use efficiencies were obtained from the treatment that received carbon dioxide at flowering and seed filling stages (0.44% & 0.44%) respectively.

Similarly the result of the treatment that conducted under field showed that, the maximum nitrogen use efficiencies were 0.54% and 0.53% used by the treatments applied cytokine and

both combination of carbon dioxide & cytokine at flowering stages (Table 9) respectively. On the other hand, the minimum nitrogen uptake efficiency was obtained from the treatment that applied carbon dioxide at flowering stage (0.42%).

As the result indicated nitrogen up take efficiency high at early stage of growth (tillering stage), that enhance the wheat to increase the number of tillers. These mean that the amount of nitrogen in the straw is greater than the amount nitrogen in the grain wheat except the treatments that received cytokine at flowering and seed filling. Therefore the application of carbon dioxide, cytokine, and both combination of carbon dioxide and cytokine at early stage helps the plant to maximum nitrogen uptake efficiency. However the importance of both carbon dioxide and cytokine application at this stage is less for wheat crop productivity. It may be important for vegetable crops, whose vegetative parts are consumed. Then to increase photosynthetic efficiency, enhancing sink capacity, and improving N uptake of wheat would be applied both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stage is potentially help to increase grain yield. Therefore nitrogen uptake efficiency is increased by the application of cytokine hormone at flowering for wheat crops.

These finding agree with (Baker and Allen, 1993; Campbell, 2011) who reportedly that Carbon dioxide enrichment stimulated greater amount of branching or tillering by increasing photosynthesis, reducing photorespiration and transpiration. However the application of Carbon dioxide fertilizer during tillering period indicated that early growth and tillering were relatively unimportant.

4.3.6. Straw Nitrogen use efficiency

The analysed data for both experiments in controlled environment and under field condition had showed significant effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at different stages (P <0.01) on straw nitrogen use efficiency (Appendix Table).The result of the experiment in control environment showed that, the treatments that received cytokine and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at tillering stages were contains the maximum straw nitrogen use efficiency (0.24% and 0.27%)(Table 8) respectively. The minimum straw nitrogen use efficiencies were recorded in treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide at flowering stages (0.16% and 0.165%) respectively.

Similarly the experiment under field condition showed that, the treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide & cytokine at tillering stages were contained the maximum straw nitrogen use efficiency (0.255%)(Table 9). And also the minimum straw nitrogen contents were recorded in treatment that applied carbon dioxide at flowering stage (0.145%).Similarly as above discussed the nitrogen use efficiency of straws are high at the tillering stages, when carbon dioxide, cytokine and both the interaction of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at the tillering stage of wheat growth that promote vegetative growth, increases the number of tillering per plant and prolong the stage of vegetative that help the plant to store high nitrogen in its straw. However the importance of both carbon dioxide and cytokine application at this stage is less for wheat crop productivity. It may important for vegetable crops, those consumed their vegetative parts.

The result agree with (Baker and Allen, 1993; Campbell, 2011) who reportedly that Carbon dioxide enrichment stimulated greater amount of branching or tillering by increasing photosynthesis, reducing photorespiration and transpiration. However the application of Carbon dioxide fertilizer during tillering period indicated that early growth and tillering were relatively unimportant.

4.3.7 Effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine on wheat grain Nitrogen utilization efficiency.

The analysed data for both experiments in controlled environment and under field condition had showed significant effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine applied at different stages (P < 0.01) on the grain wheat nitrogen utilization efficiency (Appendix Table 7 & 8). The result of the control environment experiment showed that, the treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stages used maximum grain wheat nitrogen utilization efficiency (80% and 76%)(Table 8) respectively. The minimum grain wheat nitrogen utilization efficiencies were recorded in treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide & cytokine at tillering stages (50% and 55%) respectively.

Similarly under field condition the treatments that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stages used maximum grain wheat nitrogen utilization efficiency (74% and 78%) (Table 9) respectively, While the minimum grain wheat nitrogen utilization efficiency were recorded in treatment that received carbon dioxide and both carbon dioxide &cytokine at tillering stages (45% and 53%) respectively.

These results showed that the most important time of application of carbon dioxide and both the interaction of carbon dioxide & cytokine for maximum grain seed nitrogen utilization efficiency is at time crop flowering period. These indicated that most photo assimilates directly allocated to sink which increases number of grain seed per plant, size of grain seed, length of spike, quality and finally grain yield per unit area. Cytokine increases 1000-kernel weight through retarding ageing and increasing the seed's active growth period and positively influencing source tissues and increasing photosynthetic capacity (Xie *et al.*, 2004).

4.3.8 Effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine on wheat grain nitrogen use efficiency.

The analysed data for both the experiments in control environment and under field condition showed significant effect of Carbon dioxide and Cytokine applied at different stages (P <0.01) on grain nitrogen use efficiency (Appendix Table 7 & 8).The result of the experiment in control environment showed that, the treatments that received both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stage contained the maximum grain seed nitrogen use efficiency (38.4%)(Table 8). The minimum grain seed nitrogen use efficiency cytokine at tillering stages (24.00%).

Similarly under field condition the experiment showed that, the treatment that received both carbon dioxide & cytokine at flowering stage contained the maximum grain seed nitrogen use efficiency (41.60%) (Table 9), while the minimum grain seed nitrogen use efficiency recorded in treatment that received cytokine at tillering stage (22.75%). The term use efficiency is the result nutrient uptake multiplied by utilization efficiency. Then the application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stage help the crop to increase nutrient uptake, photosynthesis, reduce photorespiration, use the nitrogen efficiently by allocating most of the photo assimilates to the grain seed that resulted high yield and quality.

Therefore the application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at pollination stage was very important for nitrogen use efficiency that providing high grain yield and quality. These founding agree with (Xie *et al.*, 2004), who reported that Cytokine increases 1000-kernel weight through retarding ageing and increasing the seed's active growth period and positively influencing source tissues and increasing photosynthetic capacity. And also agree with (Fischer *et al.*, 1998) who reported that there is mounting evidence that the yield potential of many crops is limited by their capacity to exploit sufficient Carbon dioxide during their lifecycle, limiting grain size and quantity. "Carbon dioxide fertilization" through increased CO_2 levels would be ideal for yield increase.

TRT			MEAN	
	NUPE (%)	BPNE (%)	NUtE (%)	NUE (%)
	e teh	o o - h	- - h	a c tod
$(CO_2)T$	0.48	0.25°	55"	26.40 ^a
$(CO_2)F$	0.44 ^e	0.16 ^e	76 ^b	33.44 ^{ab}
(CO ₂)SF	0.44 ^e	0.18 ^d	69 ^d	30.36 ^{cd}
(CK)T	0.48^{bc}	0.24 ^b	50 ⁱ	24.00 ^e
(CK)F	0.49^{b}	0.19 ^{cd}	67 ^e	32.83 ^{bc}
(CK)SF	0.46 ^d	0.21 ^c	63 ^f	28.98 ^{cd}
(CO ₂ X CK)T	0.52^{a}	0.27 ^a	61 ^g	31.72 ^c
(CO ₂ X CK)F	0.47 ^{cd}	0.165 ^e	80^{a}	38.40^{a}
(CO ₂ X CK)SF	0.47 ^{cd}	0.195 ^{cd}	71 ^c	33.37 ^{abc}
	0.01	0.03	6.11	0.02
CV (%)	1.49	3.77	1.18	5.55

Table 8: The mean values of wheat crop nitrogen use efficiency, nitrogen uptake efficiency and nitrogen utilization efficiency for different treatments in control environment.

CV = Coefficient of Variation, TRT = Treatment, NUPE = Nitrogen uptake efficiency, By product nitrogen efficiency, N Utilization efficiency, and NUE= N used efficiency.

		MEAN			
TRT	NUPE (%)	BPE (%)	NUtE (%)	NUE (%)	
(CO ₂)T	0.455 ^e	0.24 ^b	57.5 ^g	25.16 ^h	
$(CO_2)F$	0.420^{f}	0.145 ^c	74.5 ^b	31.29 ^d	
(CO ₂)SF	0.440^{ef}	0.185 ^b	69 ^d	30.36 ^e	
(CK)T	0.50^{b}	0.185 ^b	45.5 ⁱ	22.75 ⁱ	
(CK)F	0.54 ^a	0.175 ^b	66.5 ^e	35.91 ^b	
(CK)SF	0.46^{c}	0.175 ^b	63.5 ^f	29.21 ^f	
(CO ₂ X CK)T	0.50^{b}	0.255 ^a	53.5 ^h	26.75 ^g	
(CO ₂ X CK)F	0.53 ^a	0.185 ^b	78.5 ^a	41.60 ^a	
(CO ₂ X CK)SH	-50.450^{e}	0.185 ^b	71.5 ^c	32.17 ^c	
Standard Error	0.01	0.02	6.42	0.03	
CV (%)	1.49	3.47	1.27	2.62	

Table 9: The mean values of the wheat crop nitrogen use Efficiency, N uptake efficiency and N utilization efficiency for different treatments under field condition.

CV = Coefficient of Variation, TRT = Treatment, NUPE = Nitrogen uptake efficiency, BNE= By product nitrogen efficiency, NUtE= nitrogen utilization efficiency, and NUE = nitrogen used efficiency.

4.4 Correlation analysis

4.4.1. The correlation between parameter of growth rate, yield and yield components in control environment

The Correlation analysis of wheat that conducted in control environment) between growth parameters, yield and yield related traits, were given in (Table 1 & 3). The simple correlation analysis showed that number of tiller had highly significant (P <0.01) and positively correlated with days of heading (r=0.91), number of spikelet per spike (r=0.99), spike length per plant (r=0.98), thousand seed weight (r=0.98),grain yield (r=90),harvest index (r=0.99) and It negatively correlated with date of maturity (r=0.99),plant height (r=0.99),number of seed(r=0.99), and biomass yield(r=0.97). The date of heading has highly significant (P <0.01) and positively correlated with plant height (r=0.76) and negative correlated with harvest index (r=0.72).

Day to maturity was highly significantly (p<0.01) and positively correlation with plant height(r=0.99), number of seed per spike(r=0.97) and biomass yield(r=0.98) and it negatively correlated with number of spikelet per spike(r=0.99), spike length per plant(r=0.97), thousand seed weight(r=0.99), grain yield(r=0.88) and harvest index(r=0.99). Plant height was highly significant (P<0.01) and positively correlated with number of spikelet per spike(r=0.99) and biomass yield(r=0.98) and negatively correlated with number of spikelet per spike(r=0.99) and biomass yield(r=0.98) and negatively correlated with number of spikelet per spike (r=0.99), spike length per plant (r=0.97), thousand seed weight (r=0.97), grain yield (r=0.90) and harvest index(r=0.99).

Number of spikelet per spike was highly significantly (P <0.01) and positively correlated with spike length per plant (r=0.98), thousand seed weight (r=0.98), grain yield(r=0.91) and harvest index (r=0.99) and negatively correlated with number of seed per spike(r=0.99) and biomass yield(r=0.97). Spike length was highly significant (P<0.01) and positively correlation with thousand seed weight (r=0.96), grain yield (r=0.94) and harvest index (r=0.99) and negatively correlated with number of seed per spike(r=0.97). Number of seed per spike(r=0.97) and biomass yield(r=0.94). Number of seed per spike was highly significant (P <0.01) and positively correlated with biomass yield(r=0.98) and negatively correlated with thousand seed weight (P <0.01) and positively correlated with biomass yield(r=0.98) and negatively correlated with thousand seed weight(r=0.99), grain yield(r=0.99), grain yield(r=0.88) and harvest index(r=0.99).

Thousand seed weight was highly significant ($p \le 0.01$) and positively correlated with grain yield (r=0.86) and harvest index(r=0.98) and negatively correlated with biomass yield (r=99). Biomass yield was highly significant (P <0.01) and negatively correlated with grain yield (r=0.83) and harvest index (r=0.96). Finally grain yield was highly significantly (P<0.01) and positively correlated with harvest index(r=0.89).

	NT	DH	DM	PH	NSP	SPL	NS	TSW	BIO	GYW	HI
NT	1.00	0.91**	-0.99**	-0.99**	0.99**	0.98**	-0.99**	0.98**	-0.97**	0.90**	0.99**
DH		1.00	-0.11ns	0.76**	-0.09ns	-0.16ns	0.13ns	-0.45ns	0.51ns	-0.27ns	-0.72**
DM			1.00	0.99**	-0.99**	-0.97**	0.99**	-0.99**	0.98**	-0.88**	-0.99**
PH				1.00	-0.99**	-0.97**	0.99**	-0.99**	0.98**	-0.90**	-0.99**
NSP					1.00	0.98**	-0.99**	0.98**	-0.97**	0.91**	0.99**
SPL						1.00	-0.97**	0.96**	-0.94**	0.94**	0.99**
NS							1.00	-0.99**	0.98**	-0.88**	-0.99**
TSW								1.00	-0.99**	0.86**	0.98**
BIO									1.00	-0.83**	-0.96**
GYW										1.00	0.89**
HI											1.00

1. The relationship of different growth, yield and yield component parameters at green house.

* and ** = Correlation is significant and highly significant at p<0.01 and p<0.05 levels, respectively.; DH =Day of heading ,DM =Day of maturity , NT =Number of tiller , PH =Plant height , NSP =Number of spike let per plant, SPL =Spike length , NS =Number of seed per spike , TSW =Thousand seed weight , BIO =Biomass yield , GY =Grain yield , HI = Harvest index(field).

4.4.2. The relationship between parameter of growth rate, yield and yield components under field

The Correlation analysis of Bread wheat conducted under field between growth parameters, yield and yield related traits, were given in (Table 2 &4). The simple correlation analysis showed that the number of tiller was highly significantly (P<0.01) and positively correlated with day to heading (r=0.82) and significant at (P<0.5) and negatively correlated with thousand seed weight (r=0.50).Days of heading has highly significant (P <0.01) and negatively correlated with, date of heading (r=0.69 and spike length per plant (r=0.58). And significant (P <0.5) and negatively correlated with, grain yield (r=0.47) and harvest index(r=0.53). Day to maturity has highly significantly (p<0.01) and positively correlated with plant height(r=0.62), number of spikelet per spike(r=0.67) spike length per plant (r=0.70), grain yield(r=0.69) and harvest index(r=0.76). Plant height was highly significant and positively correlated with number of spike let per spike (r=0.79), spike length(r=0.69), grain yield (r=0.79) and harvest index(r=0.85).

Number of spikelet per spike was highly significantly (P < 0.01) and positively correlated with spike length (r=0.82), grain yield(r=0.83) and harvest index (r=0.83). And also significantly (P<0.5) and positively correlated with number of seed(r=0.65). Spike length was highly significant (P<0.01) and positively correlation with grain yield (r=0.76) and harvest index

(r=0.82). And also significantly (P<0.5) positively correlated with number of seed(r=0.49). Number of seed per spike was highly significant (P <0.01) and positively correlated with grain yield(r=0.69) and harvest index (r=0.62). And also significantly (P<0.5) positively correlated with biomass yield (r=0.56).

Thousand seed weight was significantly ($p \le 0.5$) and positively correlated with biomass yield (r=0.56). Biomass yield was significant (P <0.5) and positively correlated with grain yield (r=0.55). Finally grain yield was highly significantly (P<0.01) and positively correlated with harvest index(r=0.96).

2. The relationship of different growth, yield and yield component parameters at field.

Para	NT	DH	DM	PH	NSP	SPL	NS	TSW	BIO	GY	HI
NT	1.00	0.82**	-0.39 ^{ns}	0.09^{ns}	-0.03^{ns}	-0.25^{ns}	0.19 ^{ns}	-0.50*	-0.11 ^{ns}	-0.10^{ns}	-0.09^{ns}
DH		1.00	-0.69**	0.42ns	-0.41ns	-0.58**	-0.06ns	-0.43ns	-0.06ns	-0.47*	-0.53*
DM			1.00	0.62**	0.67**	0.70**	0.17ns	0.44ns	0.16ns	0.69**	0.76**
PH				1.00	0.79**	0.67**	0.63*	0.08ns	0.19ns	0.79**	0.85**
NSP					1.00	0.82**	0.65*	0.38ns	0.37ns	0.83**	0.83**
SPL						1.00	0.49*	0.37ns	0.17ns	0.76**	0.82**
NS							1.00	0.19ns	0.46*	0.69**	0.62**
TSW								1.00	0.56*	0.43ns	0.32ns
BIO									1.00	0.55*	0.32ns
GYW										1.00	0.96**
HI											1.00

* and ** = Correlation is significant and highly significant at p<0.01 and p<0.05 levels, respectively.; DH =Days of heading ,DM =days of maturity , NT =number of tiller , PH =plant height , NSP =number of spikelet per spike, SPL =spike length , NS = number of seed per spike, TSW =thousand seed weight , BIO =biomass yield , GY =grain yield , HI = harvest index

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

A study on carbon dioxide and cytokine application at different stages on growth, yield and grain quality of Digalu (HAR 3116) were conducted at Jimma, Ethiopia in (2014 to 2015). The experiments were arrangement in RCBD for ten treatments with three replications. The study focused on the effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine foliar spray at different stage in both control environment and field condition that thousand seed weight, grain yield, harvest index, grain seed protein, nitrogen utilization efficiency and nitrogen use efficiency were significantly affected by the effect of CO₂, cytokine and both combination of carbon dioxide and cytokine at different stages while nitrogen supply was not significant due to both the available nitrogen in the soil and the amount nitrogen applied (urea) were the same for all treatments.

The maximum thousand seed weight (52 & 53.93g) observed both in green house and field respectively, due to the application of cytokine at flowering stages. The maximum grain yield relatively to the others (13.44 ton ha⁻¹ & 11.89 ton ha⁻¹) were observed in both green house and field respectively due the application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stages. The highest grain protein contents relatively the others (16.75% & 16.76%) were observed in both green.

The highest nitrogen utilization efficiency (80% & 78%) were observed both in green house and field respectively, due to the application of both CO_2 and cytokine at flowering stages. And finally the highest nitrogen use efficiency (38. & 41.6) were observed as compared with other different treatments, both in green house and field respectively, due to the application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stages.

Results of this experiment indicated highest significant differences in grain yield per hectare and grain protein content (%) both in green house and field. Numerically, that have both the highest grain yield per hectare and optimum seed quality(protein) were recorded comparatively to the other treatments both in green house and field, due to the foliar application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stages. Also relatively to the other treatments the foliar application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at seed filling stages both in green house and field were comparative good both in grain yield per hectare and seed quality. The foliar application of carbon dioxide at flowering stages in both, in green house and field were high

grain yields but low seed quality (protein). However, this tentative generalization, based on one season at one location, required confirmation with further studies to give a valid recommendation. From the forgoing results, grain yield and quality (protein) can be substantially improved by the use of foliar application of both carbon dioxide and cytokine at flowering stage in Jimma and similar areas for further study is good for bread wheat (Digalu).

From the present findings, it is possible to suggest the followings as high priority research areas:

- Research on effect of carbon dioxide and cytokine foliar application of bread wheat productivity and grain quality should be continued. Because the population number, Urban expansion and wheat demand radically increase in a country, however the productivity of wheat in Ethiopia is very low grain yield, due to the climate change such as rain fall shortage, variability, and lack of uniform distribution that cause the shortage of moisture in the soil.
- Breeder will be done on increasing nitrogen uptake, assimilatory and responsive genes would ensure optimal nitrogen allocation toward expanding source and sink tissues under elevated CO₂ levels as well as improving grain yield and quality.
- Breeder will be work on increasing cytokine hormone in plant tissue that help wheat crops to increase nitrogen uptake and protein synthesis in grain seed.

6. References

Abu Tefera, 2013. Ethiopia: grain and feed annual. Gain report number: ET-1301.

Adugna Abera, 2007. The role of introduced sorghum and millets in Ethiopian agriculture. Retrie ved from *http://test1.icrisat.org/Journal/mpii/v3i1/news/*.

Amthor, J.S. 1995. Plant respiration responses to elevated partial CO₂ pressures. In: Advances in Carbon Dioxide Effects Research. L.H., Allen, Jr., M.B., Kirkham, C. Whitman and D.M., Olzyk (eds.). Special Pub., American Society of Agronomy, Madison, Wisconsin.

Amthor, J.S. and Loomis, R. S.1996. Integrating knowledge of crop responses to elevated CO2and temperature with mechanistic simulation models: Model components and research needs. PP. 317–346.

Amthor, J. 2001. Effects of atmospheric CO2 concentration on wheat yield: review of results from experiments using various approaches to control CO2 concentration. Field Crops Research 73: 1–34

Arndt, C., Strzepeck K., Tarp, F., Thurlow, J., Fant, IV. C. and Wright, L. 2011. Adapting to climate change: an integrated biophysical and economic assessment for Mozambique. African Regional Perspectives 6 (1), 7-20.

Asseng, S. I., A. N., Foster and N. C., Turner, 2011. The impact of temperature variability on wheat yields. Glob. Change Biol. 17: 997 – 1012.

Baker, J.T. and L.H., Allen Jr. 1993: Contrasting crop species responses to CO2 and temperature: rice, soybean, and citrus. *Vegetation*, 104/105, PP. 239-260.

Bekele Hunde, H., Varkuijl, W. Mwangi and D. G., Tanner, 2000. Adaptation of improved wheat technologies in Adaba and Dodola woredas of the Bale highlands, Ethiopia.

Bernacchi, C. J., Pimentel, C. & Long S. P. 2003. *In vivo* temperature response functions of Parameters required to model RuBP-limited photosynthesis. *Plant Cell and Environment* Vol. 26: 1419–1430.

Bewket Woldealak, Radeny Maren and Mungai Catherine, 2015. Agricultural Adaptation and Institutional Responses to Climate Change Vulnerability in Ethiopia. CCAFS Working Paper no. 106. CGIAR Research Program on Climate Change, Agriculture and Food Security (CCAFS).PP.10.www.ccafs.cgiar.org.

Block, P.J., Strzepek, K., Rosegrant, M.W. and Diao, X. 2008. Impacts of considering climate variability on investment decisions in Ethiopia. Agricultural Economics 39: 171-181.

Bremner, J. M. and C. S. Mulvaney, 1982. Salicylic acid-thiosulfate modification of Kjeldahl method to include nitrate and nitrite. Methods of soil analysis, Part 2. Agronomy 9:621-622. Am. Soc. Agron., Inc. Madison, WI.

Campbell Neil A., Reece Jane B., Urry Lisa Andrea, Cain Michael L., Wasserman Steven Alexander, Minorsky, Peter V. Jackson, Robert Bradley, 2008. Biology (8th ed.). San Francisco: Pearson, Benjamin Cummings. pp. 827–830.

CSA, 2009. Report on Area and Production of Major crops. Ethiopian Agricultural Sample Survey Private Peasant Holdings, Meher Season (2009/10) – Volume IV. Statistical Bullet in 446. Addis Ababa: Central Statistical Agency.

Chaudhuri, U.N., M.B. Kirkham and E.T. Kanemasu, 1990. Root growth of winter wheat under elevated carbon dioxide and drought. Crop Sci. 30:853–857.

Deressa, Temesgen Tadesse, Hassan and Rashid M. 2009. Economic impact of climate change on crop production in Ethiopia: Evidence from cross-section measures. Journal of African Economies 18: 529-554.

Food and Agricultural Organization of the United Nations, 2011. Strengthening Capacity for Climate Change Adaptation in Agriculture: Experience and Lessons from Lesotho. Food and Agricultural Organization of the United Nations, Rome. *http://Faostat.fao.org/*.

FAO, 2014. Analysis of price incentives for wheat in Ethiopia. Technical notes series, MAFAP, by Wakeyo Mekonnen, Mulate Demeke, Lanos Barthelemy, Rome. PP.2. *http://Faostat.fao.org/*.

FAO Stat. 2015, "World Wheat, Corn and Rice". Oklahoma State University, FAOStat. Archived from the original on 10 June, 2015.*http://Faostat.fao.org/*.

Fischer, R. A., Rees D., Sayre, K. D., Lu Z. M., Condon, A. G. and Saavedra A. L. 1998. Wheat yield progress associated with higher stomata conductance and photosynthetic rate and cooler canopies. *Crop Sci.* 38: 1467–1475.

Fischer, G. 2009. World Food and Agriculture to 2030/50: How do climate change and bio energy alter the long term outlook for food, agriculture and resource availability? Paper presented at FAO Expert meeting on how to feed the world in 2050, Rome, Italy

Getachew Agegnehu, C. vanBeek and M. I. Bird, 2014. Influence of integrated soil fertility management in wheat and tef productivity and soil chemical properties in the highland tropical environment. Journal of Soil Science and Plant Nutrition, 2014.

Ghannoum, O., von Caemmerer, S., Ziska, L.H. & Conroy, J.P. 2000. The growth response of C4 plants to rising atmospheric CO2 partial pressure: a reassessment. *Plant, Cell and Environment* Vol. 23: 931–942.

Gifford RM. 1988. Direct effects of higher carbon dioxide concentrations on vegetation. In: Greenhouse, Planning for Climate Change (GI Pearman, ed), CSIRO, Melbourne, PP. 506-519.

Giles, R. J. and Brown, T. A. 2006. *Glu Dyallele variations in Aegilopstauschii and Triticum aestivum: implications* for the origins of hexaploid wheats. Theor. Appl. Genet. 112: 1563–1572.

Gornall Jemma, Richard Betts, Eleanor Burke, Robin Clark, Joanne Camp, Kate Willett and Andrew Wiltshire (2010). "Implications of Climate Change for Agricultural Productivity in the Early Twenty-First Century." *Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences* 365.1554 (2010): 2973–2989.

Kihara H. 1924. Cytologische und genetische Studien beiwichtigen Getreidearten mitbesonderer Rücksicht auf dasVerhalten der. Chromosomen und die Sterilität in denBastarden. MemCollSci.Univ Kyoto Ser B 1: 1–200.

Kimball, B.A. 2011. Lessons from FACE: CO2 effects and interactions with water, nitrogen and temperature. In: D. Hillel and C. Rosenzweig, editors, Handbook of climate change and agro ecosystems: Impacts, adaptation, and mitigation. Imperial College Press, Hackensack, NJ. pp. 87–107.

Kimber, G. and Sears, ER. 1987.Evolution in the genus *Triticum* and the origin of cultivated wheat. In: Wheat and Wheat Improvement, 2nd Ed (Heyne EG, Ed.). American Society of Agronomy, Madison, WI. pp. 154-164.

Koch, K. 2004. Sucrose metabolism: regulatory mechanisms and pivotal roles in sugar sensing and plant development. Current opinion. Plant Biol., 7: 235-246

Leakey, A. D. B. 2009: Rising atmospheric carbon dioxide concentration and the future of C4 crops for food and fuel. Proceedings of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences, 276(1666): 2333–2343.

Letham, D.S. and L.M.S., Palni, 1983. The biosynthesis and metabolism of cytokinins. Ann Rev Plant Physiol, 34:163–197.

Li, A.G., Hou, Y.S., Wall, G.W., Trent, A., Kimball, B.A. and Pinter, Jr. P.J. 2000. Free-air CO_2 enrichment and drought stress effects on grain filling rate and duration in spring wheat. *Crop Science*, 40: 1263-1270.

Lin, E., X., Wei, J. Hui, X. Yinlong, L. Yue, B. Liping and X. Liyong, 2005: Climate change impacts on crop yield and quality with CO₂ fertilization in China. Philos. T. Roy. Soc. B., 360: 2149-2154.

Liu, J. S., Fritz, C. F., A. Van Wesen beeck, M. Fuchs, L. You, M. Obersteiner, 2008. A spatially explicit assessment of current and future hotspots of hunger in sub- Saharan Africa in the context of global change. Global Planet Change, 64: 222 – 235.

Long, S.P., Ainsworth, E.A., Rogers, A. & Ort, D.R. 2004. Rising atmospheric carbon dioxide: Plants FACE the future. *Annual Reviews in Plant Biology* Vol., 55: 591–628. MacKey, J. 1966. Species relationship in *Triticum*. In: Proceedings of the 2nd International Wheat Genetics Symposium, Hereditas, and Suppl., 2:237-276.

McSweeney, C., M. New, G. Lizcano and X. Lu, 2010. The UNDP climate change country profiles improving the accessibility of observed and projected climate information for studies of climate change in developing countries. Bull. Am. Meteorol. Soc., 91: 157 – 166.

Morris, R.D., D.G. Blevins, J.T. Dietrich, R.C. Durly, S.B. Gelvin, J. Gray, N.G. Hommes, M. Aminek, L.J. Mathews, R. Meilan, T.M. Reinbott, L. Sagavendra-Soto, 2005. Cytokinins in plant physiol., 20: 621-637.

National Research Council."Summary." Ocean Acidification: A National Strategy to Meet the Challenges of a Changing Ocean. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press, 2010.

Nelson, G.C., Rosegrant, M.W., Koo, J., Robertson, R., Sulser, T., Zhu, T., Ringler, C., Msangi, S., Palazzo, A., Batka, M., Magalhaes, M., Valmonte-Santos, R., Ewing, M., Lee, D. 2009. Climate Change Impact on Agriculture and Costs of Adaptation. Food Policy Report. Washington, D.C: International Food Policy Research Institute.

Nesbitt, M. and Samuel D. 1996. From stable crop to extinction. The archaeology and history of the hulled wheats. In: S. Padulosi, K. Hammer, J. Heller (Eds.) Hulled Wheats. International Plant Genetic Resources Institute, Rome, pp. 41–100.

Obrist, D. and J.A. Arnone, 2003. Increasing CO₂ accelerates root growth and enhances water acquisition during early stages of development in Larrea tridentate. New Phyto 1., 159:175–184.

Olsen, OA., RH. Potter and R. Kalla, 1992. Histo differentiation and molecular biology of developing cereal endosperm. Seed Sci. Res., 2:117-131.

Pervez Zamurrad Janjua, Ghulamsamad and Nazakat Ullakhan, 2010.Impact of Climate Change on Wheat Production. Pp. 801.

Pleijel, H. & Uddling, J. 2012. Yield vs. Quality trade-offs for wheat in response to carbon dioxide and ozone. Global Change Biology. 18: 596–605.

Poorter, H. 1993. Inter specific variation in the growth response of plants to an elevated ambient CO2 concentration. Vegetation 104/105: 77–97.

Poorter, H., Roumet C. and Campbell, B.D. 1996. Inter specific variation in the growth response of plants to elevated CO₂: A research for functional types.In carbon dioxide, Populations and Communities (eds C.Korner & F.A. Bazzaz), PP.375- 412.

Prior, S.A., H.A. Torbert, G.B. Runion and H.H. Rogers, 2003. Implications of elevated CO2 induced changes in agro ecosystem productivity. J. Crop Prod., 8:217–244.

Prior, S.A., D.B. Watts, F.J. Arriaga, G.B. Runion, H.A. Torbert and H.H. Rogers, 2010. Influence of elevated CO2 and tillage practice on rainfall simulation, p. 83–88.

Rashid, S., Jackson, TN. 2010. In Conservation agriculture impacts Local and global. Proc. 32nd Southern Conservation Agricultural Systems Conference).

Ringler, C., T. Zhu, X. Cai, J. Koo and D. Wang, 2010. Climate change impacts on food security in sub-Saharan Africa: insights from comprehensive climate change scenarios (No. 1042). International Food Policy Research Institute (IFPRI), Washington, DC.

Robinson, S., Willenbockel, D., Strzepek, K. 2012. A Dynamic General Equilibrium Analysis of Adaptation to Climate Change in Ethiopia. Review of Development Economics 16, 489-502.

Rogers, H.H., G.B. Runion, S.V. Krupa and S.A. Prior, 1997. Plant responses to atmospheric carbon dioxide enrichment: Implications in root–soil–microbe interactions. In: L.H. Allen et al., editors, Advances in carbon dioxide effects research. ASA, Madison, WI. p. 1–34.

Rosell, S. 2011.Regional perspective on rainfall change and variability in the central highlands of Ethiopia, 1978-2007.Applied Geography 31: 329-338.

Rosenzweig, C. and Parry, M.L. 1993. Potential impact of climate change on world food supply: A summary of a recent international study. In: *Agricultural Dimensions of Global Climate Change*. H.M. Kaiser and T.E. Drennen (eds.). St. Lucie Press, Delray Beach, Florida, pp. 87-116.

Rosenzweig, C. and Iglesias, A. 1994. *Implications of Climate Change for International Agriculture: Crop Modelling Study*.EPA 230-B-94-003.US Environmental Protection Agency, Washington DC.

Salamini, F., Özkan, H., Brandolini, A., Schäfer-Pregl R, Martin W.2002. Genetics and geography of wild cereal domestication in the Near East. Nat. Rev. Genet. 3: 429–441.

Seleshi, Y. and Zanke, U. 2004. Recent changes in rainfall and rainy days in Ethiopia. International Journal of Climatology 24, 973-983.

Stern, 2006, Stern review on the economics of climate change, H.M. Treasury:*mudancasclimatic as.cptec.inpe.br/.../sternreview_report_complete.pdf*.

Sinclair, T. R., Pinter, P.J. Jr., Kimball B.A., Adamsen, F.J. 2000.Leaf nitrogen concentration of wheat subjected to elevated (CO_2) and either water or N deficits. Agric. Ecosyst. Environ. 79: 53 –60.

Tuguo Tateoka, 1975. A contribution to the taxonomy of the Agrostis mertensii flaccida complex (Poaceae) in Japan. Journal of Plant Research. pp. 65–87. (doi: 10.1007/bf02491243).

Waddington, S. R., Li, X., Dixon, J., Hyman, G. & Vicente, M. C. 2009. Highland temperate mixed: (Wheat Background Paper). Available from *http://www.generationcp.org/sp5_impact/tar geting-wheat*.

Wand, S.J.E., Midgley, G.F., Jones, M.H. and Curtis, P.S. 1999. Responses of wild C4 and C3 grass (Poaceae) species to elevated atmospheric CO_2 concentration: a meta-analytic test of current theories and perceptions. Global Change Biology 5: 723–741.

Warrick, R.A. 1988. Carbon dioxide, climatic change and agriculture. George, J., 154:221–233.

WB (World Bank), 2006. Managing water resources to maximize sustainable growth: A country water resources assistance strategy for Ethiopia. World Bank, Washington, DC.

Weih, M., Asplund, L. and Bergkvist, G. 2011. Assessment of nutrient use in annual and perennial crops: A functional concept for analyzing nitrogen use efficiency. *Plant Soil*, 2011, *339* :513–520.

Xie, Z., D. Jiang, T. Dai, W. Cao, 2004. Effect of exogenous ABA and cytokinin on leaf photosynthesis and grain protein accumulation in wheat ears cultured in vitro. Plant Growth Regul., 44: 25-32.

Ziobro Rafal, Dorota Gumul, Jaroslaw Korus and Anna Korus, 2016. "Starch bread with a share of non-wheat flours as a source of bioactive compounds in gluten-free diet." *Journal of Food & Nutrition Research* 55, no. 1 (2016).

7. APPENDIX

Appendix Table 1. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of growth parameters received carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different stages in control environment

	Mean Square									
Source	Df	NT	DH	DM	PH	SPN				
Model	8	5.432***	14.101***	8.316***	1.643***	5.566***				
Error	18	0.022	0.061	1.013	0.148	0.224				
Corrected total	26									
F Value			232.15	8.21	11.06	247.97				
Pr > F		< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001				
CV (%)		3.28	0.38	0.85	0.42	0.69				

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, NT = Number of tiller, DH = Days of heading, DM = Days of maturity, PH = plant height, SPN = number of spikelet per spike.

Appendix Table 2. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of yield component received carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different stages under field condition.

			Mean	square			
Source	Df	SPL	NS	TSW	BMY	GRY	HI
Model	8	4.728***	30.83***	26.950***	7892289.22***	10966563.14***	346.361***
Error	18	0.077	0.148	0.067	375644.42	10518.04	3.264
Correct total	26						
F Value		61.75	208.11	398.98	21.01	1042.64	26.11
Pr>F		< 0.0001	0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001
CV (%)		2.68	0.46	0.54	4.50	1.02	4.92

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, SPL = Spike length, NS = Number of seed per plant, TSW = thousand seed weight, BMY = Biomass yield, GRY = Grain yield, HI = Harvest index.

	Df		Mean Square			
Source	DI	NT	DH	DM	PH	SPN
Model	8	2.657 ***	15.440***	29.994***	3.019***	5.085***
Error	18	0.066	0.113	0.533	0.195	0.396
Corrected total F	26					
Value		39.98	136.32	56.26	15.46	12.94
Pr>F		< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001
CV (%)		6.11	0.47	0.56	0.48	2.96

Appendix Table 3. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of growth parameters that received carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different under field condition

.DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, NT = Number of tiller, DH = Days of heading, DM = Days of maturity, PH = plant height, SPN = number of spikelet per spike.

Appendix Table 4. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of yield component that received carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different stages under field condition

			Mean	square			
Source	Γ	Of SPL	NS	TSW	BMY	GRY	HI
Model	8	1.911***	3.152***	35.562***	5309783***	9548926***	123.65***
Error	18	0.190	0.098	0.195	37.22	6.41	0.12
Correct total	26						
F Value		10.06	32.18	181.88	142651	1490295	1052.87
Pr>F		< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001
CV (%)		4.59	0.36	0.89	2.5	1.3	0.5

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, SPL = Spike length, NS = Number of seed per plant, TSW = thousand seed weight, BMY = Biomass yield, GRY = Grain yield, HI = Harvest index.

Appendix Table 5. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain quality and nitrogen contents of other yield component received carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different stages in control environment.

			Mean	square	
Source	Df	GrP	TNStr	TNP	NB
Model	8	14.741***	2759.624***	1379.71***	1379.71***
Error	9	0.0002	0.045	2.000	2.000
Correct total	17				
F Value		73703.4	61325	689.85	689.85
Pr>F		0.0001	0.0001	0.0001	0.0001
CV (%)		0.12	0.15	0.46	0.46

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, Trt = Treatment, GrP = Grain protein, TNStr = Total nitrogen in straw, TNP = Total nitrogen in plant, NS = Nitrogen supply, BN = Biomass yield nitrogen.

Appendix Table 6. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain seed and other yield component of nitrogen use efficiency received carbon dioxide, cytokine and their combination at different stages in control environment.

			mean	square		
Source	Df	GrNUE	NUPE	BPNE	NUtE	NUE
Model	8	8.206***	1.25***	3.551***	0.0186***	3.1014**
Error	9	0.000001	0.000001	6.111	0.00006	2.555
Corrected total	17					
F Value		16.88	25.00	0.95	304.98	12.14
Pr>F		< 0.0001	< 0.0001	< 0.0001	0.0001	< 0.0001
CV (%)		2.28	1.48	3.77	1.18	5.55

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, Trt = Treatment, GrNUE = grain nitrogen use efficiency, NUPE = Nitrogen uptake efficiency, BPNE = By product nitrogen efficiency, NUTE = Nitrogen Utilization efficiency, and NUE = Nitrogen used efficiency.

Appendix Table 7. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain quality and nitrogen contents of other yield component of different treatment at different stages under field condition.

			Mean	square	
Source	Df	GrP	TNStr	TNP	NB
Model	8	14.741***	1401.050***	5240.848***	5240.848***
Error	9	0.0002	1.597	0.500	0.5
Correct total	17				
F Value		73703.4	877.22	10481.7	10474.8
Pr > F		0.0001	0.0001	0.0001	0.0001
CV (%)		0.12	1.03	0.21	0.21

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, TRT = Treatment, GrP = Grain protein, TNStr = Total nitrogen in straw, TNP = Total nitrogen in plant, NS = Nitrogen supply, BN = Biomass yield nitrogen.

Appendix Table 8. Analysis of variance table showing mean square values of grain seed protein and other yield component of nitrogen use efficiency of different treatments at different stages in control environment.

Source			mean	square		
	Df	GrNUE	NUPE	BPEN	NUtE	NUE
Model	8	4.922***	3.039***	2.314***	0.0225***	4.403***
Error	9	5	5	4.444	0.0001	6.25
Corrected total	17					
F Value		10.94	60.78	52.06	337.96	70.46
Pr>F		0.0001	0.0001	0.0001	0.0001	0.0001
CV (%)		2.49	1.49	3.47	1.27	2.62

DF = degree of freedom, %CV = % coefficient of variation, *** highly significant (P < 0.001), ** highly significant (p<0.01), *Significant (P < 0.05), Ns = non-significant difference, TRT = Treatment, GrNUE = grain nitrogen use efficiency, NUPE = Nitrogen uptake efficiency, By product nitrogen efficiency, NUE = Nitrogen utilization efficiency, and NUE = Nitrogen used efficiency.